ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 11, 2002
3:20 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Murkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 229
"An Act inposing a tax on enploynment; and providing for an
effective date.”

- TABLED HB 229

HOUSE BI LL NO. 281
"An Act relating to civil Iliability for providing alcoholic
beverages to a person under 21 years of age; and providing for
an effective date.™

- MOVED HB 281 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 258

"An Act converting the business l|license fee to a business
| icense tax; adding, as an elenment of that tax, conputation of
the tax based on the taxpayer's gross receipts; establishing
adjustnments to that tax; and transferring admnistration of the
levy to the Departnment of Revenue; and providing for an
effective date.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 2/ 13/ 02

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 11, 2002



BILL: HB 229
SHORT TI TLE: EDUCATI ON TAX ON EMPLOYMENT
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

04/ 02/ 01 0810 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 01 0810 (H L&C, FIN

04/ 27/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 27/ 01 (H Heard & Held

04/ 27/ 01 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 11/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 281
SHORT TITLE: CI VIL LI ABILITY FOR PROVI DI NG ALCOHOL
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) MEYER

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 14/ 02 1948 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/02

01/ 14/ 02 1948 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1948 (H L&C, JUD

02/ 11/ 02 2209 (H COSPONSOR('S): DYSON

02/ 11/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 428

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 229 to the commttee as the
sponsor.

DOUGLAS A. LETCH, Staff

to Representative Gary Stevens

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 428

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on HB 229 on behal f of
t he sponsor, Representative Stevens.

SUZANNE HANCOCK, St af f

to Senator Al an Austerman
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 11, 2002



Capi tol Building, Room 417
Juneau, Al aska 99801
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 229.

NEI L SLOTNI CK, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Revenue

PO Box 110405

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0405

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions related to HB 229.

SENATOR ALAN AUSTERMAN

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 417

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  As sponsor of the Senate conpanion bill to
HB 229, SB 165, answered questions relating to the education tax
on enpl oynent .

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance

Kodi ak | sl and Borough School District

722 M1l Bay Road

Kodi ak, Al aska 99615

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 229.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Menber

Juneau Chapter

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

211 4th Street, Suite 102

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 281.

MARTI GREESQON, Executive Director

Anchor age Chapt er

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

3600 Arctic Boulevard, Suite 3

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 281.

MATT W LLI AMS, Police Oficer

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

4501 Sout h Bragaw

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 281.

CATH E MAURO

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 11, 2002



2730 West 80th Avenue
Anchor age, Al aska 99502
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 281.

DONNA GARNER, Executive Director

Victins for Justice

1057 West Fireweed Lane, Suite 101

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 281.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-16, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Commerce
St andi ng Comm ttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3: 20 p. m
Representatives Mirkowski, Meyer, Crawford, and Hayes were
present at the call to order. Representatives Halcro, Kott, and
Rokeberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 229- EDUCATI ON TAX ON EMPLOYMENT

[ Cont ai ns di scussion pertaining to SB 165, the conpanion bill.]
Nunber 006
CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that the first order of business is

HOUSE BILL NO 229, "An Act inposing a tax on enploynent; and
providing for an effective date."

Nunber 021

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
introduced HB 229 to the commttee. He said this bill could
easily be a part of long-range fiscal plan. He nentioned that
HB 229 is the House conpanion bill to Senator Austerman's SB
165. He addressed sone of the issues that the commttee m ght
be interested in. He said, "This is a $100-a-year-per-person
head tax, and as you may recall ... in 1970 ... there was a $10
head tax at the tinme, and it was an easy enough thing; it was
taken out of your first paycheck.”" He said although HB 229 is

considerably nore, $100, it can be taken out of the first two
paychecks - $50 each paycheck. He stated that it would be
collected by the enployer and remtted to the state on February
1. This would only apply to people who are 19 years or ol der,
and not the high school student working part-tine. He said that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 11, 2002



nostly it would affect the people who are out of high school and
wor ki ng full-tine.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said that this would not apply to the
mlitary because he doesn't think there's any way to collect

t hat . He stated that there would be no exenptions for incone
| evel s, nor for senior citizens or for people who are 19 years
or ol der. Qut -of -state workers certainly would be a part of

this. The intention is that this would be used for educationa
funding, but of course it can't be dedicated. He said that the
cost to collect this tax would be $822,000. The tax itself
would be estimted at $38 nmillion a year, and the departnent
woul d hire eight people to collect the tax.

Number 063

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said HB 229 is supported by the school
board association, the Sitka school district, and the Kodiak
| sl and Bor ough, anmong others. He concluded his presentation and
offered to answer any questions that the commttee m ght have.

Number 069

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI noted that there are two fiscal notes in the
packet . One is from 2001, and the other is an updated fisca
note as of February 11, 2002. She said that the updated fisca
note indicates a |esser anount than Representative Stevens
ment i oned.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked Representative Stevens why the
mlitary is exenpted, and inquired if [a nenber of the mlitary
is] exenpted if he/she holds another job in the community
outside of his/her mlitary duties.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said that they are only exenpted fromthe
mlitary pay, so any job they may have in the comunity woul d be
a part of that. He apol ogi zed for his early departure fromthe
proceedi ngs, but said he had to |l eave to chair the House Specia
Comm ttee on Fisheries neeting.

Nunmber 094

CHAI R MJRKONSKI asked a nenber of Representative Stevens' staff
if this would be applicable to seasonal enployees who conme to
Al aska, whether they're working in Denali Park or working on a
processor. She asked if she was correct in assumng that it's
whatever the first two paychecks of that enployee would be;

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 11, 2002



whether it's in January or in July, the paynents would be taken
fromthe first two paychecks.

Nunber 105

DOUGLAS A. LETCH, Staff to Representative Gary Stevens, Al aska
State Legislature, said, "That's correct. C The way we see
the bill is that it would apply to the first two paychecks,
what ever tine you start working during the course of ... that

cal endar year."

REPRESENTATI VE  MEYER  asked i f he is correct in hi s
interpretation that it doesn't matter how nuch one nakes,
everybody over 19 years of age pays the $100.

MR. LETCH said that is correct. He stated that the idea is that
the tax would go to any individual over the age of 19 who is
enployed in the state of Al aska, exclusive of the mlitary.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said, "So in sonme ways this is a regressive
tax, but in other ways it's a fair tax because everyone pays the
sanme anount, but regressive in the sense that ... if you work at
Burger King for mninum wage, the $100 is going to inpact you
nore than soneone who works somewhere el se and nakes a |ot nore

noney. " He asked if it would be easier to just w thdraw $100
from the permanent fund dividend (PFD) instead of hiring eight
people and having alnmpst $1 million in costs to collect the

noney. He asked if that option had been di scussed.
Nunmber 130

MR. LETCH nentioned that Representative Stevens' office and
Senator Austerman's office discussed the issue the other day.
He said:

| don't want to put words in ny boss's nmouth, but it's
his feeling that by adding the permanent fund dividend
into this, it creates yet anot her | evel of
bur eaucr acy. And his intention would be to keep the
bill sinple. However, if that is the wish of the
conmmittee, and if the Senator's office would like to
comment on the PFD issue, |I'm sure we'd be willing to
entertain that conversation as well.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he was going to suggest taking $100
out of each permanent fund dividend, but the intention was just

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 11, 2002



to capture those age 19 and over, which would be a little nore
of an adm nistrative task.

Nunber 145

CHAIR MURKOWBKI noted that the seasonal enployees would not be
affected if $100 is deducted from the pernmanent fund dividend.
She said, "You' re getting the college kids who are com ng up and
working in the parks or the folks that are working in the
fisheries and the canneries. This is a way that we can capture
noney fromthose who do cone [to Al aska]."

MR. LETCH said, "That's exactly how Representative Stevens was
| ooking at it."

Nunber 154

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD brought up the issue of a person having
mul tiple jobs. He said the record one used to get was his/her
paycheck st ub. He explained that one's next enployer would

withhold it as well because of being liable. The enpl oyee would
then have to apply to get the noney back that he/she had al ready
pai d before. He said that a $100 deduction each tine is a |ot
nore substantial, and to sonebody |ike an ironworker who m ght
work for multiple enployers during the year, that would be a
fairly substantial anmount to w thhold throughout the year. He
said, "lI'd just like to see ... a good way of proving that
you've already paid this tax."

Nunber 174

MR. LETCH said [to Representative Crawford], "I wunderstand you
were in a situation where you had 12 jobs at one tine, and were
paying that $10 each tine you took a job." He said that he
thinks the ultinmate solution may be sonething as sinple as being
able to show a paycheck stub to one's next enployer. He

nmentioned that there is a procedure for one to apply for a
refund if an enployer takes an extra $100 out of an enployee's
pocket . He said that sonmeone is nore likely to go after the
$100 than the $10.

REPRESENTATIVE HALCRO said that Jlast year the comittee
di scussed that probably the nost efficient way to collect the
tax mght be to tie it to the Enploynent Security Contribution
(ESC) reports that enployers are responsible for filing every
quarter. He nentioned that the ESC report has the enployee's
nane and social security nunber, and that it seens to him it

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 11, 2002



would be a vehicle to have some sort of a check-and-bal ance
system Every quarter when an enployer submits the ESC, it can
be reconciled who has paid and who hasn't. He asked M. Letch
if he has talked to the Departnent of Revenue about "marrying"
the school tax fee to the ESC report.

Number 206

MR. LETCH said that he would have to defer to sonebody from
Senator Austerman's staff.

Number 208
AN UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER said, "Yes and no."

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked, "I think nore information is forthcom ng,
correct?"

AN UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER sai d, "Sure."
Nunber 211

MR. LETCH said that after the hearing on [HB 229] last April,
Senator Austerman's staff and Representative Stevens' staff did
sone brainstorm ng and have | ooked into the issue. He said that
after the two offices talked on Friday, the understanding was
that they were still waiting for sone clarification from the
| egal departnent and the revenue departnent.

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI told M. Letch that if he finds any nore
information to et the commttee know.

Number 220

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Letch if he could go over the
rational e for exenpting those under 19 years of age.

MR. LETCH said the idea behind exenpting those under the age of
19 is because the graduating age of nobst high school students is
18, so "we wll be capturing those people who are not in the
adult workforce as of yet."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if a limtation on the anount of
i ncone, for exanple, $500 or $1, 000, was consi dered.

VR. LETCH said that Representative Stevens' and Senat or
Austerman's offices have tal ked about that, and he believes the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 11, 2002



consensus was to go with the straight-across-the-board $100 head
tax on everybody, with no exenptions.

Nunber 242

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated his appreciation for allow ng the
tax to be taken out in the first two regular payroll periods
after January 1. He said it's been his experience that in sone
| ower-level, entry-level jobs, sonetines the enployees don't
return to work on the second or third day because they perhaps
found out that they don't like the job or they discovered they

don't like to work anynore. He said, "I hate to do this, but
I'd say it's an indictnment of the youth of this country and in
this state right now. | don't think young people know how to

wor k anynore."
Nunber 254

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG spoke of his experience with his new
business this |ast year in which nmany people, after a day or two
of work, found out what the job actually entailed and would quit
or just stop showing up to work. This caused a good deal of
paperwork from the accounting standpoint. He said that he is in
agreenent with the point that Representative Halcro rai sed about
tying this to the ESC or maeking it due later than February 1.

He said, "I guess a concern | have is ... that ... you mght
want to consider a provision to make it the second or third
payroll period for new hires or sonmething." He said that this
is going to have an inpact on business activity. He asked if

Representative Stevens' office or Senator Austerman's office had
consi dered what kind of fiscal inpact and burden HB 229 is going
to have on private business.

Nunmber 268

MR. LETCH offered that he has had a job for one day, saying that
he was a vacuum cl eaner salesman and a car salesman for a short
tinme. He deferred Representative Rokeberg's question to Susan
Hancock from Senator Austerman's office to address sone of the
private i ssues. He said that later he could get back to the
guestion on the second or third payroll [deduction].

Number 280
SUZANNE HANCOCK, Staff to Senator Al an Austernman, Al aska State

Legislature, testified on HB 229. She said Senator Austerman's
office talked to several gentlenmen with the Departnent of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 11, 2002



Revenue |ast year, and they said that tying the enploynent tax
to the ESC collection would add to the expense. She nenti oned
that they were trying to keep the fiscal note as |ow as possible
by keeping things as sinple as possible.

[ Represent ati ve Rokeberg asked a question that was indiscernible
because of background noi se. ]

Number 0288
M5. HANCOCK replied, "The state.”

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI asked, "So did they indicate what ... the
additional fiscal note would be, or did they go that far?"

M5. HANCOCK replied in the negative, saying that it was just at
that point of discussion and [the state] just said that it would
add to the cost of the fiscal note.

Nunber 292

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG voiced his concern over this serious
matter. Many  snal | busi nesses can only use expensive
prof essi onal accounting, at $50 to $150 an hour, to put together
their quarterly statenments and to nmake sure that they're neeting
their |egal obligations to both the state and federal
gover nnment s. He said that from the private-sector standpoint,
it seens the nost opportune tinme to file the enploynent tax is
to do it in conjunction with other types of filings. He said,
"I don't see this as a enornmous burden, but it could Dbe,
depending on the level of entry-level jobs that a business m ght
have. "

Number 305

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to the "$700,000 or $800, 000"
fiscal note, and said it's going to cost the private sector in
Al aska, in terns of productivity and actual hard costs, maybe
twice that because of the accounting tine put into the
collection of it. He said, "Wen this is designed, it needs to
be designed in such a nmanner that it mnimzes the (indisc.) and
maxi m zes this revenue. O you may have conpliance problens.”

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked Ms. Hancock if she knows anything about a

system that was instituted before that supposedly collected nore
than it cost.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 11, 2002



Nunber 317

MS. HANCOCK recalled that as far as records are concerned, there
is no collective nenory except for people who actually had Iived
in the state at that tine.

CHAI R MURKOWABKI commented that it seens hard to believe that the
Depart ment of Revenue had no nunbers.

MS. HANCOCK said that as she recalled, the Departnent of Revenue
was not forthcomng with themat the tine.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if there was anybody from the Departnent
of Revenue who was prepared to answer the question.

Number 327

NEI L SLOTNI CK, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Department of Revenue, testified on HB 229. He said that he
hasn't done research on this subject, but his understanding is
that when there was a $10 school tax in the past, all of the
collection effort was tied to the incone tax. He said that "it
was piggy-backed with the incone tax, and so we really had very
little extra collection effort involved with the tax at that
tinme. "

CHAI R MURKOABKI asked M. Slotnick to speculate how collection
woul d work if an income tax were reinstituted.

Number 336

MR SLOTNICK said he thinks that there would be a very
substantial reduction in the fiscal note if the structure of the
tax were changed from being collected a year after the tax to
being paid by the enployee, assuming that it was paid through
the normal w thholding that the enployer does with the incone

t ax. He thinks that there would probably still be sone
col l ection and enforcenment issues with the self-enployed people,
nonr esi dent s, and people who |eave the state, but the

enforcenent and data-entry costs would be "substantially |ess
t han what you're seeing here.”

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked how deductions from federal inconme tax
were done in the past with the education head tax.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 11, 2002



MR. SLOTNICK said he thinks back then it was deductible from
federal income tax, and he's not really sure what the tax
treatment woul d be today.

CHAI R MJURKOWEKI asked, "Have you given sone thought to
Representative Halcro's suggestion of tying it to the ESC?"

Nunmber 354

MR. SLOTNICK said that he recalls having discussions about that
issue last spring and the reason [the departnent] thought there
m ght be nore cost related to remttance of the ESC. The ESC is
done on a regular basis and not once a year, so as new enpl oyees
are hired, there would be a big swing in the anmount of work for
the Departnent of Labor and W rkforce Developnment or the
Department of Revenue; there would be nore returns filtering in
through the year. More returns nmeans nore work. He said, "It's
the processing of returns that ties directly to the size of our
fiscal note. . And there's big issues still out there with
what do you do about the self-enployed, and what do you do about
refunds. ... Those issues don't go away."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Slotnick if a mandatory dated
receipt that was issued to an enployee as proof of paynment to
subsequent enployers would work for this relatively small anount
of tax.

MR. SLOTNI CK asked, "Wrk ... as far as trying to avoid the
refund probl em and subsequent coll ections?"

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d yes.
Nunmber 374

MR. SLOTNICK stated that he believes there are still going to be
doubl e col l ections and refund requests.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG i nqui red whether they could be mnimzed
by providing a proof of paynent.

MR. SLOTNICK said he thinks that there could be a reduction in
the nunber of refund requests that [the Departnent of Revenue]
has to process. He nentioned that that would be asking for nore
work fromthe enpl oyers.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG interjected, "I think giving a receipt

that that's been paid ... wouldn't be asking too nuch, ... just
like a ... 1099 form"
Nunmber 386

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked, "Can we just have it generated as soon as
[the application is] received?"

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that it would either be in the form
or report that they give to the Departnent of Revenue anyway.
He explained that then there would be a triplicate form or
sonet hi ng whereby the enployee would get a copy, the departnent
would get a copy for the record, and the enployer would get a

copy.
Number 392

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO i nqui red whether the Departnment of Revenue
has done any analysis on what revenue would be generated if it
applied to all working Al askans rather than just those age 19
and ol der.

MR. SLOTNICK said, "Yes. | was just shown that figure. W used
a multiplier, and I'mtrying to renenber what that was because
we took all jobs and multiplied it by ... sonething |ike 97
percent ..., and I'mnot sure of that nunber. | can get back to
you, Representative Halcro. C Perhaps there would be 3
percent nore revenue."

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked, "3 percent nore revenue than the
$38 million?"

MR. SLOTNICK replied in the affirmative.
Nunmber 402

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT expressed t he samne concern t hat
Representative Rokeberg voiced earlier wth the nunber of
wor kers who nove from job to job. He said, "Sonehow we've got
to provide sonme kind of nechanism so they' re not always paying
$50 every time they work a day. He used a "pool of dishwashers"
as an exanple of a group of workers in the service industry that

keep nmoving from restaurant to restaurant. He said that it
could be an accounting nightrmare because they work one day and
make  $60. After paying the FICA [Federal | nsur ance

Contributions Act] contribution, they have $52 left, and then to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 11, 2002



take $50 from the remainder would |eave the enployee with $2.
He asked what effect this proposal would have on the active-duty
mlitary, both in and out of state.

Number 413

MR. SLOTNICK said he believed that wunder the Soldiers' and
Sailors' Cvil Relief Act [of 1940], [the Department of Revenue]
cannot tax mlitary pay.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT nentioned that it's his understanding that
sone states inpose an incone tax on those nunbers if [a nenber
of the mlitary] becones a resident of the state that has that
i ncone tax.

MR. SLOTNICK said that may be correct and that he wll check
with his tax technicians and report back to Representative Kott.
He nentioned that in the inconme tax |egislation he has been
working on, there's always a provision to exenpt those who are
eligible for exenptions under the Soldiers' and Sailors' Gvil
Relief Act. He said that may be only for nonresident mlitary.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said, "That probably is correct. | seemto
recall ... talking to sonme of ny friends who had an inconme tax
i nposed upon them as they lived in a certain state that had an
i nconme tax. C So | think there's a conbination, but I'd be

curious to see what effect we m ght have on that."
Nunber 427

CHAIR MURKOWSEKI stated that the fiscal note from the departnent
does provide that the bill as it is witten would appear to
apply to US mlitary personnel on active duty in the state
but who retain a |legal residence in another state.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if it would be inposed.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI said it appears to apply [to those] who retain a
| egal residence in another state. So those who claim residence
[in Alaska] would have to pay.

Nunmber 433

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO pointed out that the department notes in

its analysis that "the Soldiers' and Sailors' G vil Relief Act
may preclude us fromdoing that." He asked if this was correct.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 11, 2002



MR. SLOTNI CK answered, "From charging nonresidents ... who have
income here in this state. . There is no provision in the
Act to provide for that."

Number 438

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked if this in any way affects Al aska
residents who are currently enployed in another state.

MR. SLOTNICK replied that he doesn't think so, as he reads the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if there is any way to catch them
because there are a |large nunber of Alaska residents who work in

ot her states. He referred to the large nunber of mlitary
menbers who are out of state; both they and their spouses are
residents of the state. He said, "So the spouse is working,

non- al | onabl e absence; they're eligible for the PFD and not able
to get anything from the spouse's working in another state, but
is in fact an Al askan resident." He nentioned that there are
al so nenbers in the airline industry who reside out of the state
but are not eligible for a PFD because they're not on an
al | owabl e absence.

Number 453

MR. SLOTNI CK explained that the state can inpose an incone tax
on its residents, which would include incone earned outside of
the state. He said that when a state does that, it has to give
a credit to the individual for any tax that individual m ght
have to pay in the state where the inconme was earned. He said
he's not sure how that would work with a head tax because it's
not conparable to incone taxes in other states where the incone
was ear ned.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT thought that it would be problenatic. He

said, "Absent sone other nechanism that there could be a
deduction from there's no way to sweep in these folks that are
out of state, ... not to nmention the nunber of college students
who live out of state ... working part-tine." He asked if there

has been any kind of review of what effect this would have on
the short-term positions that generally don't pay very nmuch,
such as el ection workers who work one day and are paid $100. He
voiced his concern about deducting $50 right off their pay
because it's a paid volunteer position and it may be the only
thing they do.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 11, 2002



Nunber 474
MR. LETCH said that discussion has not been brought up.

CHAl R MURKOWSKI asked Senator Austerman if he wi shed to address
this issue.

SENATOR ALAN AUSTERVAN, Al aska State Legislature, said, "No.
He's correct. W have not had that discussion.”

Number 479

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Slotnick if there are head
taxes in other states that [the state] mght |ook at [to]
collect the federal taxation on the assessnents to other
citizens in other states.

MR. SLOTNI CK said although that research has not been done yet,
he woul d offer to look into the subject.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that mght give [the state] sone
clue about how the inposition of such a tax would relate to
private tax issues. He nentioned that Al abama still has a pol

t ax.

MR, SLOTNICK said he would get back to Representative Rokeberg
on that subject.

Nunmber 489

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO suggested there needs to be a change to
i ncorporate those workers under the age of 19 al so. He argued
that even a working mnor is still responsible for paying union
dues and nonthly fees, with no exenptions. He said, "I think
that this tax is sonething justifiable to take out of their
paycheck, especially given the fact that education is the
bi ggest expense we have in this state.”

Number 501

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked Representative Halcro if he wi shes to
sweep in the seven-year-old who delivers newspapers al so.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said, "If they get a check from an
enpl oyer, | would say yes."

CHAI R MURKOWSKI said, "You're tough.™

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO nentioned that he delivered newspapers as
a boy too.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered that his first job was sweeping
out the Boy Scout headquarters when he was 13 years old and got
nailed with the school tax. He said he wasn't happy about that.

Number 509

SENATOR AUSTERMAN said that this tax was introduced based upon
the premse that it would be part of a package in the end.
Qoviously, this type of a tax on a stand-al one basis is probably
nore expensive to tax and nore expensive for the business owner
than [the state would] want to bear. He offered that this type
of a tax works well with an incone tax. He said:

When we had it before, that's how you handled it. You
went back to your incone tax at the end of the year
when you filed your state incone tax, or you submtted
a copy of all your receipts if you paid four or five
different tinmes because you had four or five different
jobs. You were able to deduct that off of your incone

t ax. That was a part of the process ... [ The] sanme
applied, then, at the sanme tinme with your federa
t ax. It just becane part of ... the tax structure
that you were able to deduct off your federal incone
t ax. So | think the overpaynent issue ... really

m ght hit you hard while you're doing it, but you end
up in the end being able to use that to cone back.

SENATOR AUSTERMAN addressed the issue of exenptions, and said
that the permanent fund dividend is a prine exanple of why there
shoul dn't be any exenptions within this program He continued:

W didn't want Pandora's box opened. W didn't want
to get in the sane situation we [are in] with the

permanent fund. ... There's a page and a half to two
pages of exenptions within the permanent fund process
as you go through. W didn't think that ... on a $100

tax it was necessary to have those type of exenptions.

In reference to Representative Rokeberg's concerns
about the one-day worker, ... that's a very good
questi on. | think ... we need an answer to that and
how you address that, whether it cones out of their
second paycheck or whether, however you do it so that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 11, 2002



they actually are hired for nore than ... the day.

18- or 19-year-olds - ... that was an arbitrary nunber
that we picked. We thought about the newspaper
carriers, we thought about the babysitters, and the
rest of this stuff - how you got to a position where
you actually ... were hitting people you really didn't
want to hit. So we actually set it at ... 19.
Oiginally we had tal ked about ... 18, but we noved it
to 19. And with that, | would hope you would nove

this on to [the House Finance Standing Commttee] at
sone point in time so that it is actually part of the
overal | package that is there for discussion

Number 537

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT offered conceptual Amendnent 1, relating to
the effective date on page 2, line 16. He said that he thinks a
big part of the problem wth this stand-alone piece of
legislation is that this Act takes effect on passage of a state
i ncone tax, but no sooner than January 1, 2003. He said that
without an inconme tax, it becones sonewhat problematic in
applying it or reducing the tax burden. He said:

I"'m not sure sales tax would generate the income tax
form that you would need. Paying a sales tax, ... |
don't think there's any reporting to the state
gover nnent .

Number 551

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG objected to Anendnent 1, and said that
it presupposes that there will be state incone tax before a
sal es tax. He said, "W don't know at this tinme what type of
taxation and the general nature wll be [of] the (indisc.)
introduced in the state effectively."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.
Nunber 558

CHAI R MURKOWSKI noted that wthout any objection, Anendnent 1
was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nentioned that Representative Halcro
"wanted to do the 'under 19' one."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that he doesn't know how that's
possi bl e now because if it's based on the passage of an incone
tax, there's no 7-year-old paperboy who's going to be filing an
i ncome tax return. He nmentioned that it kind of defeats the
pur pose because those under 18 don't have to file an inconme tax
return.

Nunmber 564

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nenti oned t he PFD.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said, "Certainly Senator Austerman's
comment about the babysitter is one that | hadn't thought about,
and | think he has sone nerit to that."

Nunmber 567

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt conceptual Anmendnent 2,
on page 1, line 9, to delete 'February 1' and add 'March 31
He said he thinks that is the deadline date for the ESC

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked M. Slotnick if he knew the deadli ne date.
MR. SLOTNI CK sai d no.

Number 573

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "It closes out on the 31st."

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if it is due then.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "No, | don't want to make them do
the sane day as...."

Nunmber 576

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO objected for the purpose of discussion.
He said he would read this bill to say the tax shall be paid
before March 31 of the calendar year followng the year for
which it is inposed. If an enployer hires sonebody on March 1
2002, the taxes do not need to be submtted until Mrch 31,
2003. He said, "So you're going to allow an enployer to hold on
to this tax revenue for 13 nonths before you submt it to the
state. | think you set yourself up for some...."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "That's the way they have it

witten. Don't blanme ne for that. Actually, I'm extending it
out, and ... the date's got to be [on] April 15."
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he thinks that's "too nuch ... tinme."

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked for sone clarification fromthe sponsor on
this issue. She said, "As | read it, as well, you can't have
your enployer holding on to these funds for 13 nonths."

Nunmber 584

SENATOR AUSTERMAN nentioned that |ast year in the Senate Finance
Commttee there was a lot of discussion about changing to
quarterly paynents to the state. Part of those discussions
dealt with when quarterly paynents were due on a normal business
basis, and whether that fits. He stated that he hasn't had the
chance to research the topic because he hasn't been able to get
anot her hearing [in the Senate Finance Conmittee].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG explained that normally the ESC tax
woul d be 30 days after the end of the quarter.

SENATOR AUSTERVAN sai d, "Yes."

TAPE 02-16, SIDE B
Number 590

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG anended conceptual Anendnent 2 to
i nclude, "shall be paid quarterly on the dates now currently ...
followng 30 days after the due date of ESC taxes". He
expl ained that the taxes will be collected and paid quarterly.

SENATOR AUSTERMAN sai d, "Qur discussion was to nmake it as sinple
as possible ... so that we don't have duplication of any of
the..."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "Right, so they would be paid
quarterly.”

Number 583

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said, "So, basically, what you're | ooking
for is ... "shall be paid ... the first quarter'..."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG interjected, "No. 'Should be paid
quarterly"."” He nentioned that he doesn't know what the dates
are but is referring to the dates that the ESC t axes are due.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO offered that naybe the |anguage should

read sonething like, "Shall be paid quarterly followng the
quarter for which it ... is inposed, shall be paid every
quarter."”

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked if that neans the enployers will be paying
in quarterly.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO replied that they would, along the sane
tinmeline as they file the ESC

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered that this is a conceptual
anendnent and the drafter can figure out the specific | anguage.

Nunmber 574

SENATOR AUSTERMAN said that since "you've tied the incone tax to
it, ... maybe you could tie a paynent for your inconme tax why
the business is..."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG i nterjected, "No inconme tax, buddy."

CHAI R MURKOWSKI nentioned that she isn't sure what conceptua
Amendnent 2 is yet.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ained that conceptual Anmendnent 2
is, "Shall be paid quarterly at the sanme date due that the ESC
taxes are due." He said that 30 days after every quarter, [an
enpl oyer] submits to the state the anmount collected during that
quarter.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO nentioned that he thinks the |anguage
shoul d just be adopted.

Nunber 564
CHAI R MURKOWSKI confirmed what conceptual Amendnent 2 states.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG interjected and said, "Or we could nake
it April 30. W could go through the whole litany here.”

Number 559

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- February 11, 2002



CHAIR MURKOWBKI asked if there was any objection to conceptua
Amendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if this would increase the fiscal note
because the departnent will have to account for this noney four
times a year versus once.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said, "That's why you have ESC on such a

short leash - 30 days past the quarter - is because we don't
want business out there holding on to tax revenues for a year."
He asked what would happen if a business went bankrupt. He

offered that it just hurts the system further down the line and
there is certainly a good reason why sone businesses and
corporations are on a short |eash. He said that depending on
how big a business or corporation's payroll is, sone deposits
for the ESC or federal incone tax need to be deposited within 72
hours of paying the enployees. He said that he thinks it's
better to keep [HB 229] on a short |eash.

Number 548

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said that in the iron-working industry
there are a lot of contractors who cone up from out of state and
hire 50 to 60 ironworkers through the sunmer, and then | eave the
state and never cone back. He nentioned that there are also
lots of fly-by-night contractors that cone into the market and
then | eave and never conme back under that nane again. He stated
his support for a short |ease, instead of having enployers
hol di ng the tax funds for up to 13 nonths.

Number 540

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO offered an exanple of an enpl oyer who has
al ready takes $100 out of an enployee's paycheck and the conpany
then | eaves the state. The enpl oyee therefore has no proof that
he/ she has paid the $100 tax because the enployer has taken it
W t hout submtting it.

Nunber 534
CHAI R MJURKOWBKI, hearing no objection to conceptual Anendnent 2,
announced that it had been adopted wth "very conceptual™

| anguage at this point.

Number 530

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt conceptual Anendnent 3,
page 1, line 13, to add "and $650 of income" after "of each
cal endar year." He explained that the idea is that the enpl oyee
woul d al so have to have earned at |east $650 before the paynent
i s due.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI objected for the purpose of discussion. She
asked, "Wat happens if you have a dish-washer who never does
earn $650?"

Number 518

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG answered, "He skated. It would be a
cunmul ati ve effect.”

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI verified that it wuld be the first two
paychecks and after the enployee has earned $650.

SENATOR AUSTERMAN offered that this would increase the workl oad
on the businesses. He said:

If it's just an automatic thing and then at the end of
the year, if they haven't nade 'x' amount of dollars,
maybe you want to put a level on the tail end, or if

you have to file an incone tax. ... Once you try to
make the enployer make the determ nation whether the
gentl eman has nade $650 curul atively over ... a series
of jobs -- | assunme that all enployees nust receive
stub; it should state right on there. C If [an
enpl oyee] can provide that enployer with a paycheck
stub showi ng $100 worth, then it ... shouldn't have to

W thdraw it anynore.
Nunmber 506

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned that the reason why he offered
conceptual Amendnent 3 is to have a mninmum inpact on business.
He said, "So | would disagree with the Senator's assessnent.”
The intention is to avoid having to nake any wthdrawal and
paynment for that worker who doesn't neet the first week's

payrol . He offered that wuntil an enployee has shown that
he/she is going to be there for a while, then the deduction
could be nmade. He said that the $650 is derived from
calculating the presuned mnimum wage, which would be $300 a
week. He said, "And then adding a small, $25-a-week surcharge
on to that, which one mght take to be half of the CPI." He

explained that this would nean that an enployee would have to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- February 11, 2002



stick to a job at least a week or two before he/she would be
subject to the withholding. He offered that he thinks this wll
save busi nesses noney.

Number 493

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI of fered t hat she under st ands wher e
Representati ve Rokeberg is and doesn't know that she necessarily
di sagr ees. She stated her concern with how this would fit with
the wording as it is now Dbecause "we're stating that we're
going to nake the deductions on each of the first two regular
payrolls period, and now if you never get to that ... point...."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it should be on the first $650.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI ment i oned t hat it sounds as t hough
Representative Rokeberg is saying it shouldn't nmake any
difference whether it's the first paycheck or the fifth; he just
wants to make sure the enployee [will stay at the job].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it should be the first paycheck
after the first $650 is made, to make sure it's collected. He
said, "If we could make a conceptual anendnent there, again, |
think that the $650 as a mninum anmount before an enpl oyer has
the obligation to nake the deduction -- leave it to the drafter
on how we really want to fit it in there."

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked, "So you wouldn't have it split up, then?"
Nunber 480
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d:

| think you could have it split up, too, ... because

you could have a mninmm wage earner, or [an] even
| ess than 40-hour-week earner, wth a pretty snal

paycheck. | wouldn't change that. And after the
first of January, | would just make another criterion.
Al'l things being equal there, that $650 ... [nust be]
earned before the rest of those provisions Kkick in.

It's for that purpose to avoid ... having to
assess or deduct from the person that works a day or
two and then doesn't show up: ... the six-hour used-

car sal esman.

Nunber 472

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO of fered that maybe this needs to be tal ked
through a Ilittle nore, because Senator Austerman raised a
concern about the inpact on business. He said:

Let's face it, if sonmebody shows up for work one day,
Monday, they conme and work eight hours and nake 60
bucks and then don't show up the next day, ... you'd
basically deduct the 50 bucks from the 60. And
there's got to be some way to reconcile that because
obviously if he quits, either he's got to cone back
three days later and get a paycheck, as state |aw
allows himto, or the person's not going to show back
up and collect his day's wages. Regardless, you stil

have the ability to deduct that $50 from ... the day's
pay. C There's got to be sonme kind of separate
accounting nethod where you'd have to -- | don't know

if you'd prorate that.
Nunmber 458

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered that it is a judgnent cal
because it would cause sonme nore accounting problens. He stated
that it's the lesser of the evils. He said that "it has the
beauty of allowi ng you to go back to your under-18. ... So al
the other casual |aborers, small jobs for baby-sitters and the
| awn- mower s basically are exenpt and.."

Number 453

CHAI R MURKOWSKI said that they' re not exenpt. She offered that
as a baby-sitter she'd certainly earned nore than $650 over a
sunmer . She said, "In terns of keeping track of that $650
anount, by the end of the year your 16-year-old granddaughter
coul d be meking that."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "No, she's fired before that.
No nore trips to Tasty Freeze."

Number 438

CHAIR MURKOWBKI said that the conmittee is getting too bogged
dowmn with it and that she was going to maintain her objection

She then called for a roll call vote on conceptual Amendnent 3,
which is, "You're going to have tw deductions from your
paycheck, but you have to have established that you have earned
a m ni rum of $650."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- February 11, 2002



A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Rokeberg and Hal cro
voted for conceptual Anendnent 3. Representatives Crawford,
Meyer, Kott, and Murkowski voted against it. [ Representative
Hayes was absent. ] Therefore, conceptual Anendnent 3 failed by
a vote of 2-4.

Nunber 427
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "I do think we need in page 2,
[lines 5-8] ... [a] record-of-wthholding provision." He

explained that if the enployee can furnish a subsequent enpl oyer
with a proof of paynment, then that enployer is relieved from
maki ng t he deducti on.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked Representative Rokeberg to restate
hi s concern.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG r est ated t he af or enenti oned.

Nunmber 417
CHAIR MURKOWNBKI said, "There is reference ... under collection
of tax, [beginning on] page 1, line 15, 'A deduction of the tax

may not be made in the salary or other conpensation of a person
who provides proof to the enployer that the tax inposed under AS
43. 45. 011 has been paid.'"

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "Well, then, it's already there.”
Nunmber 410

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI asked if Representative Rokeberg was then
wi t hdrawi ng hi s anmendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d yes.
Number 405

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance, Kodiak Island Borough School
District, testified via teleconference in support of HB 229. He
mentioned that he was testifying nostly as a non-taxpaying
father of three students in Kodiak, and a little as the Director
of Finance for the Kodiak |sland Borough School District. He
explained that he is a non-taxpayer because although there is
property tax and sales tax in Kodiak, after his famly receives
their PFDs in COctober, those checks nore than nake up for the
t axes paid. He said, "I get paid to live in Alaska.” He said

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- February 11, 2002



that he is frustrated because he can see the needs in his
children's schools, and there's no system in place for himto
pay for his fair share of their education. He offered that it's
difficult for him when he deposits noney in the bank from the
PFD that was originally intended to pay for the services they
are | acking. He said that he supports HB 229 because "it hits
the seasonal fishernen from Oregon that goes back to Oregon and
pays an inconme tax in Oregon on the wages he earned in Al aska."

Nunmber 386

MR. JONES offered that this tax should be collected on Novenber
1 after people have received their PFDs to elimnate the
har dshi p argunent. He said that if the commttee doesn't Iike
that nechanism then there should be an income tax or a sales
tax because both hit the seasonal enpl oyees previously
ment i oned. He said, "You don't like either of those, take ny
per mnent fund." He said that the vast mgjority of states
[ have] inconme tax and sales tax, and it's the cost of doing
business in those states. He said there has not been a cost of
doing business in Alaska for years, and "the individuals [need
to] start paying for the cost of doing business in Alaska. It's
been a nice vacation, 20 years, but it's time people start

payi ng."
Nunmber 383

MR. JONES said that he would "put a little of nmy finance hat on
now." He told nmenbers:

It's essential that we ... tackle [a] long-term fisca
pl an now. C W nmust multiply and diversify the
revenue streanms as soon as possible. | feel strongly
that if we wait and use the CBR [ Constitutional Budget
Reserve] ... we're just putting off sonething that
needs to be done. Instead, let's capture the CBR and
use it as a revenue source. - In the long term

it's nmore of a funding solution, as opposed to one
year of not having to face the probl em again.

The state fiscal plan right now if we were a private
enterprise and we walked into a bank to ask for a
| oan, how long do you think that we would be able to
sit in that chair before they opened the door and
asked us to politely leave? It's tine that we get our
house in order, and we need to do that this session.
|"ve heard people talk about ... the State of Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- February 11, 2002



is a ... train engine that's headed for the ... edge
of the cliff. ... | think that's a wong anal ogy. |
think that ... through the lack of our fiscal plan ...
the infrastructure (indisc.) reduced to the point
where that engine no |onger speeding toward the edge
of that cliff. In fact, we're breaking down. It's
about ready to stop at the edge of the cliff, and if
we don't do sonething on a long-term fiscal plan, the
engineer is going to clinb out of that train, and he's
going to |look around. And the only choice he's going
to have is to junp off the edge of that cliff.

|"m urging you, this is one of the ways that we

diversify the revenue stream and it's one of the ways
that we start paving the way that we need to, in the
State of Alaska, so we don't get up against the wall
and not have solutions that we need to deal with. You

guys are the leaders of the State of Al aska. [''m
asking you that you take that |eadership role and you
pass this ... and you provide the funding that we need

to educate the kids in Alaska in an adequate nmanner
Thank you for the opportunity to speak today.

Nunmber 354

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that M. Jones had an excellent
comment regarding the "out-of-state fishernen that come up here
and rape, pillage, and loot our resources."” He said that one
tax the fiscal policy caucus didn't pick up was a tax on the
square footage of nets. So every boat fishing in the state had
to pay a tax on the square footage of its net. He said, "Those
guys are making a killing up here and we're not getting a bl oody
ni ckel out of them™

Nunber 343

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG al | uded to page 2, lines 9-15, and said
he thinks this bill is unconstitutional to dedicate funds. He
asked, "Why does it say education? That's a fraud.” He

mentioned the general fund (GF), [in which the tax collected by
the bill is to be deposited.]

Number 331
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to the Departnent of Labor and

Wor kf orce Devel opnent’'s annual report that shows in 2001 that
Al aska is down to about 17.5 and a half percent of out-of-state

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- February 11, 2002



wor kers, the |owest percentage of out-of-state workers in the
wor kf orce since 1988. He said the state has been doing a good
job with Alaska-hire, and there has been a radical shift in out-
of -state workers. They are no longer oil field workers making
$100,000 a year. They are college kids serving burgers and
brews. He nentioned that "when we tal k about tapping the incone
generated by out-of-state workers, we need to renenber those are
(a) college kids, and (b) they're not meking a whole heck of a
| ot of noney." He said he thinks the [wages are] a |little under
$13, 000 per year. He offered that they are not going to fund
state governnent on the [out-of-state workers'] paychecks.

Number 320

CHAIR MJRKOASKI stated that she had seen the sane report, and
al t hough those nunbers are good for now, Alaska is going to have
sonme nmjor construction projects in the future. She said, "If
you believe what the AGC [Associated CGeneral Contractors] and
the folks in the trades are telling us, we are not going to have
the skilled workers to do what has to be done on sone of these
projects.” She offered that if the econony in the Lower 48
remains in the slunp that it's in, Al aska may be seeing another
influx of out-of-state workers. She said that she thinks HB 229
is one way to get sone small contribution fromthem

Number 309
REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved to table HB 229.

[ An objection was stated.]

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Meyer, Kott, and
Rokeberg voted to table HB 229. Representatives Halcro and
Mur kowski voted against it. [Representatives Crawford and Hayes

were absent.] Therefore, HB 229 was tabled by a vote of 3-2.
Nunber 296

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI called a brief at-ease at 4:36 p.m The
commttee cane back to order at 4:37 p.m

HB 281-CIVIL LIABILITY FOR PROVI DI NG ALCOHOL

Number 291

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 281, "An Act relating to civil liability for

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- February 11, 2002



provi di ng al coholic beverages to a person under 21 years of age;
and providing for an effective date.”

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, sponsor, introduced HB 281. He said that
underage drinking is a significant problem nationw de. The
tragedy that occurred in Anchorage in July 2001, which took the
lives of three teenagers and one police officer, has highlighted
t he problem of underage drinking. He said that under HB 281, an
adult who know ngly furnishes alcohol to a person under age 21
can be held civilly liable for the resulting danages.
Representative Myer stated that wunder the current statute,
licensees who knowingly sell alcohol to a mnor can be held
civilly liable for damages if it is determined that al cohol was

a subst anti al factor in causi ng injury or damage.
Representative Meyer said that HB 281 sinply holds the genera
public to the same high standard that |iquor stores and bars
have. It will only inmpact those adults who knowi ngly furnish

al cohol to a m nor.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER added that currently 30 states have
liability laws simlar to HB 281. He said that liability |aws

alone will not elimnate underage access to alcohol, but that
hopefully they wll deter adults from furnishing alcohol to
mnors. He comented that HB 281 will not bring back the lives
of the three teenagers and the officer who died; however, it
will provide a source of recourse for the victins' famlies and

send a strong nessage to adults that "we are serious about
reduci ng underage access to al cohol."

Nunmber 264

CHAIR MURKOABKI asked if the liability only cones about if the
m nor who receives the alcoholic beverage engages in activity
that results in sonme kind of damage.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that is correct, and added that this
is the sane standard that is already in place on |icensees. He

said that the key word is "know ngly". He said a person who
unknowi ngly gives a mnor chanpagne at a weddi ng reception would
not be held liable. 1In the incident in Anchorage, the furnisher

of the alcohol was 31 years old and knew that the kids were
teenagers, and therefore was convicted on a crimnal offense.
House Bill 281 would allow famlies of the victins to pursue a
civil case against the person who furnished the al cohol.

Nunber 247

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- February 11, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee [which he chairs] had introduced [HB 330], which

"raises it to a C felony.” The basis of the crimnal act under
[HB 330] has to result in serious injury or death. He added
that with a strict liability standard, "all you have to do is

prove that they sold them the alcohol and presumably it is a
jury issue as to the level of the anmount of danages.”

Nunber 234

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO t hanked Representative Meyer for bringing
HB 281 forward and added that one of his constituents is the

not her of one of the girls killed in the car crash. He said
that after talking to Mke Ford in [Legislative Legal and
Research Services] "it was his inpression and opinion that our
existing penalties for providing alcohol are sonme of the
toughest in the country.”™ He said that wi thout bunping it up to
a felony for a first tine offense, the only way to get to these
people is through their wallets. Cvil liability is the only
way to go.

Nunber 224

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that he'd heard Representative Halcro
on a radio talk show talking in support of HB 281. He said that
he has | ooked into bunping the penalty to a class C felony and
initially was talked out of this idea because a |lot of adults
who are providing mnors with alcohol are big brothers or big
sisters providing their younger brother wth a six-pack. He
said that there was conpelling testinony in the House Judiciary
Standing Conmttee to cause him to vote to nmake the penalty a
class C felony because it is a serious problem He stated that
"we need to get people's attention about having a high standard
on the civil side as well as on the crimnal side. It wll get
people's attention and make them think tw ce before buying a
si x-pack or a bottle of Jack Daniels for an underage person.”

Number 212

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG al | uded to [HB 330] and said, "Wat this
does is nove forward on the crimnal side, crimnalizing the
activity to a greater degree than it already is." He stated
that now, in the instance of crimnal activity, it's either a
cl ass A m sdeneanor for furnishing [alcohol] for the first tine
or there needs to be serious injury or death to be able to reach
the level of a felony. What [HB 281] does is takes care of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- February 11, 2002



civil action that would be |ower than that. He stated that he
is supportive of HB 281.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI said that "it's not just purchasing [the
al cohol] for [the mnors], if you' re giving thema six-pack."

REPRESENTATI VE VEYER finished Representati ve Mur kowski ' s
sentence and said that she was correct in her statenent.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI i nquired about the topic of agents and enpl oyees
being strictly Iiable.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that an agent or an enployee of a
| icensed person is already strictly |Iiable. House Bill 281
makes the general public strictly liable also.

Nunmber 186

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said that right now in current |law a parent
can provide alcoholic beverages to a son or daughter if they
consune the alcohol at hone. He asked, "If those sons or
daughters go out and cause mschief in which there was civil
liability, would they be covered under this?"

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that he thinks so because they are
strictly liable under HB 281.

Number 166

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if state law allows for a parent to
provi de al cohol to a [son or daughter].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d yes.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked if it refers strictly to consunption in
t he hone.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it refers to not being on a
| i censed prem se.

Number 158

CI NDY CASHEN, Menber, Juneau Chapter, Mdthers Against Drunk
Driving (MADD), testified as a representative of the Al aska MADD
chapters. She thanked Representative Meyer for sponsoring HB
281. She stated that MADD feels that HB 281, by increasing the
charges agai nst those who furnish alcohol to mnor, serves as a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- February 11, 2002



deterrent and as a consequence. She said that studies often
don't show the deterrents, but what is seen is nore people
living because of the action of the deterrents, as well as the

consequences. All it takes is a deterrent or a consequence for
the person standing by the liquor store to say, "No, |'m not
going to do it." She said, "It's inpossible to have that cone

up in studies.”

MS. CASHEN said MADD feels that HB 281 [will be] effective as a
deterrent and as a consequence, and has been proven to be in
ot her states. She explained that the state constitution of
Al aska allows a lot of freedom which is wonderful; however,
unfortunately many have abused those freedons to the point that
[ Alaska] now is a state of victins. She said, "I think that
it's inmportant that we now protect ourselves from ourselves.
Bot h the Juneau and Anchorage MADD chapters support HB 281."

Nunber 102

MARTI GREESON, Executive Director, Anchorage chapter of Mbthers
Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD), testified via teleconference. She
stated that MADD does support HB 281. She said, "Persons who
are providing alcohol to individuals under the |egal age of 21
must be held to a higher standard of responsibility ... for
damages to persons, property, or even comunity."” She conmented
that HB 281 will go a long way toward causing that to happen.

Number 085

MATT WLLIAMS, Police officer, Anchorage Police Departnent,
testified via teleconference. He stated that the Anchorage
Pol i ce Departnment does support HB 281. He said:

W all lost a friend and a colleague when Oficer
Wl I am was kil l ed. This shoul d have never happened.
| respectfully request that |anguage outlining when
the paynent for covering the cost of prosecution wll
be paid, as well as a provision for conmunity work
service in the event that the defendant cannot pay the
court costs.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI asked O ficer WlIlliams if there really are
peopl e hangi ng outside of package stores waiting for mnors to
come up so that they can go in, buy them sonething, and get a
little noney for thensel ves.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- February 11, 2002



MR WLLIAMS responded that vyes, it does happen, but wusually
soneone isn't waiting in the parking lot for people to conme to
t hem It is usually the other way around, where a carload of
teenagers cone into the parking lot |ooking for sonebody who's
going into the package store and ask, "Hey, can you buy ne sone
beer?" \Wen a person goes to a party where people are drinking
beer, sonebody knows sonebody who can go out and nake the
necessary al cohol purchases for everybody else. That is usually
how it works.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI said she would like to think that if this
| egi sl ati on passes, one of the first things that will happen is
sonme kind of outreach to newly turned 2l1-year-old people to
informthemthat this is the consequence if they go out and buy
t heir buddi es cases of beer.

Number 029

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER t hanked Officer Wllians for his testinony.
He said all he can go by regarding the accident is what he read
in the paper, but he said that it sounded as if it was easy for
these teenagers to get the two gentlenen - ages 30 and 31 - to
run down to the corner Mapco and get the al coholic beverages.

TAPE 02-17, SIDE A
Nunber 014

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated, "Wien you sue soneone for civil
damages, the 2l-year-old is probably not going to have a whol e

lot to go after. Certainly in this case |ast sumer, sonebody
who is 30 and 31 ... could have been sued for quite a bit,
assum ng they had assets.” He asked O ficer Wllians if it is

pretty easy for kids to get sonebody to buy al cohol for them
Nunmber 028

OFFI CER W LLI AMS responded that it is very easy. He expl ai ned
that the kids will go to the liquor store parking lot, wait for
sonebody to go in, and ask that person to buy sone al cohol for
t hem

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that [the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee] had passed [HB 330], "making it a class C felony."
He added that "hopefully between the crimnal side and now the
civil side, that the word will get out."

Number 049

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- February 11, 2002



CATHIE MAURO testified via teleconference and said that she is
the nother of Heidi Wilbacher, who died in the car crash of
July 9, 2001. She stated her support for HB 281 and thanked
Representative Meyer for sponsoring it.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER thanked Ms. Mauro for her testinony
acknow edged how difficult this nust be for her.

Nunmber 061

DONNA GARNER, Executive Director, Victins for Justice, testified
via teleconference in support of HB 281. She said that the
nessage to the kids needs to be that al cohol consunption is not
a rite of passage, and it's not all right. She addressed the
i ssue of conpensation of victins' famlies. She said she is

afraid, as a nother of a 16-year-old daughter, that "one night
when she's not within ny reach that she would make the wong
deci si on. | think anybody who has a child has to realize that
no matter how perfect they are, as teens they make wong
deci sions."

Nunber 104

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked, "How does this relate to the 31-year-
old who provides alcoholic beverages to the 19-year-old, and
then the 19-year-old gives it to his friend, and the friend that
he gave it to is the one who's involved in the accident that
causes sone civil liability?"

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d that there was testinony earlier in
the [House Judiciary Standing Commttee] about "the causation

and the connection, and it will be a nmatter of evidence because
there could be a comm ngling of various sources of alcohol at a
party." He said he suspects that it would cause the sanme kind

of problemin a civil action where the chain of causation has to
be mapped to find the approxinmate cause of the injury, and
therefore it could be problematic as to the success of the
crimnal or civil action.

Nunber 134

CHAIR MJRKOASKI voiced that she hopes the House Judiciary
Standing Committee will address the issue of being "judgnent-
proof” when |ooking for civil damages. She said, "You could
have the scenario that the parents that live in the huge,

beauti ful home and have provided a six-pack of beer for three

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- February 11, 2002



kids and they each have two, and then an hour |ater they go out
and get it from sonebody else - the next-door neighbor who
happens to live in a lousy house - and in ternms of being
j udgnent - proof you need to get into that aspect of [HB 281]."
She nentioned that this is not sonething that would cause her to
W t hhol d her support for [HB 281], but it's sonmething that needs
to be aired in the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

Nunber 152

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT addressed the issue of posting signs in
establishments where alcohol is sold so that people know the
consequence for furnishing alcohol to mnors. He said, "It's
not that we want to put people in jail under a different degree
of felony or that we want people to receive civil damages.
W're trying to prevent an activity from occurring. A posted
sign may nmake a purchaser have a second thought before buying
t he al cohol . ™

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO noved to report HB 281 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 281 was noved from the
House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Commttee.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:00 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 36- February 11, 2002



